
Executive Session-Personnel 

6:00 PM 6:30 PM Oak Room 

Borough of Bellefonte Council ork Session 

AGENDA 

6:30 – 7:25 PM, Monday, July 7th, 2025 

In-Person, Council Chambersarge eeting Room 

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

VIEW RECORDING OF  WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS:      

Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

www.cnet1.org. ATTEND IN PERSON: The Council Chambers is open with normal occupancy 

limits.  

I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Dann

II. WELCOMING COMMENTS/ OPEN REMARKS:

Welcome, everyone, to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session. No council action (making 
motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.

III. ITEMS OF DISCUSSION:
Note – All Times are approximate

A) Talleyrand Stage Discussion – 55 Minutes

a. Keller Engineering

b. Agreement

IV. ADJOURNMENT
The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business 

Meeting is scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 1 of 108

http://www.cnet1.org/


Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 2 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 3 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 4 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 5 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 6 of 108



1 

Bellefonte Borough Council Business Meeting 

7:30 PM, Monday, July 7th, 2025 

In-Person, Council Chambers

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS:      

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org. ATTEND IN PERSON: The meeting room is open with normal occupancy 

       limits.  

AGENDA 

I. 7:30 PM CALL MEETING TO ORDER

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

Mr. Bernier, North Ward Ms. Purnell, North Ward 

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward Ms. Sedgwick, West   Ward 

Ms. Cleeton, South Ward Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward 

Ms. Dann, President, South Ward   Ms. Meckley, Junior Council Member 

Mr. Johnson, Vice-President, North Ward   Mayor Johnson, At Large 

Ms. McKean, West Ward 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take official action on it with

some exceptions.  The Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies.  Council may add a

matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote.  The Council should state the reason why the

action item is being added to the agenda.  Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda.

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)
Borough Council intends to take public comment related to the motion that is on the floor after it has been duly

made and seconded.  The order of comments will be public comment and then council comment, including proposed

amendments by council members.  If amendments are proposed to the original motion, the public will then only

comment on the amendment(s) before final votes are taken.  You must be a Bellefonte resident, a non-profit

representative, a business owner, or an official representative of another governmental agency. Speakers shall

identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited

to three (3) minutes.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 7 of 108

http://www.cnet1.org/


2 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 
Opportunity for Public Comment Period Notice: Long Range Transportation Plan 2055. Tuesday, July 22nd, 2025 3:00pm-4:30pm & 

6:00pm-7:30pm. COG General Forum Room, 2643 Gateway Drive, State College, PA 16801. FYI, no council action is needed. 
Bellefonte EMS 7th Annual Joint Meeting invitation for 7:00 pm on Wednesday, July 30th, 2025. The meeting will be held at Bellefonte 

EMS, 369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, PA. Please RSVP to Scott Rhoat at ssrhoat@bems.net by Monday, July 28th, 2025.  FYI, no 

council action is needed. 

Email from resident concerned about herbicide use. FYI, no council action is needed. 

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. There 

will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be removed 

for separate action.  

Finance Budget v. Actual May 2025 

Finance Budget v. Actual Summary May 2025 

General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes June 16th, 2025 

Finance Treasurer's Report May 2025 

Finance Voucher Summary May 2025 

 

Call for a motion/2nd to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 

VIII. REPORTS 
Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor Mayor Johnson Verbal 

Jr. Council Member Ms. Meckley  

OCA Memo: See memo for report and updates 

➢ Planning Commission meeting will be held on Monday, July 14th 

➢ The HARB meeting for July 8th is canceled 

➢ Gina Thompson will be on vacation from July 4 through July 28. HARB and 

Zoning permits will not be processed during this time. OCA inquiries will not 

be addressed until she returns. Immediate matters should be directed to Julie 

Brooks. Thank you for your patience!  

Ms. Thompson  Submitted  

 

IX. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
Potter Street Railroad Spur. Motion/2nd to approve the use of  $29,000.00 from the Special Projects Fund to cover the costs of the 

transfer of the spur to the Borough from SEDA-COG. 

Locust Lane Agreement. FYI, no council action is needed. 

Centre County Transportation Services Agreement. FYI, no council action is needed. 

Review of Ordinance Chapter 405 Regulations of Parks. Motion/2nd to send Ordinance Chapter 405 to the Ordinance Committee to 

review and provide recommendations to Council.  

The Borough’s Fee Schedule was changed/updated. Motion/2nd to approve the updated Fee Schedule as presented.   

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolution No. 07072025-01 Bellefonte Borough Centre County 2025 Hazard Mitigation Plan. Motion/2nd to approve Resolution No. 

07072025-01 Bellefonte Borough Centre County 2025 Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

List of items to be auctioned on Municibid. Motion/2nd approving the provided list to be posted on Municibid. 

Financial Contribution for Air Service Development at State College Regional Airport. Motion/2nd to contribute $5,000.00 towards Air 

Service Development at State College Regional Airport.  

 
XI.  PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 
This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting agenda.  Speakers shall 

identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited 

to three (3) minutes maximum. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 8 of 108

mailto:ssrhoat@bems.net


3 

XII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER

Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT
The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM.

The Council Public Comment Policy and the 2025 List of Goals/action items will be included with each Agenda. 

Time permitting, the Council President may call for an Executive Session to discuss Personnel. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 9 of 108



Tuesday, July 22 
3 p.m.- 4:30 p.m. & 6 p.m. - 7:30 p.m.

COG General Forum Room
2643 Gateway Dr. 

State College, PA 16801

Paper copies of the documents are available
for review at the following locations:

· Centre Regional Planning Agency (CRPA), State College
· Centre Area Transportation Authority (CATA) Customer

Service Center, State College
· Schlow Centre Region Library, State College

· Centre County Planning and Community Development
Office (CCPCDO), Willowbank Building, Bellefonte

· Philipsburg Borough Municipal Building, Philipsburg
· Snow Shoe Borough Municipal Building, Snow Shoe

· Centre Hall Area Branch Library, Centre Hall
· Milesburg Borough Municipal Building, Milesburg

Public Meeting & Comment Period 

Draft Centre County Long Range
Transportation Plan (LRTP) 2055

&
2025 Air Quality Conformity

Determination Report 

The Centre County Metropolitan Planning
Organization’s new Long Range
Transportation Plan 2055 describes
transportation needs, identifies projects to
meet those needs, and helps guide decision
making about transportation improvements
in Centre County. 

The Draft Plan and the Centre County Air
Quality Conformity Report are available
for public comment from Monday, June 30
to Thursday, July 31. The MPO will also
hold hybrid public meetings about the Draft
Plan on Tuesday, July 22 from 3pm-4:30pm
and 6pm-7:30pm.

Members of the public are encouraged to provide comments at the hybrid meetings,
via email (amessner@crcog.net) or the CCMPO website: www.crcog.net/lrtp2055

The CCMPO Coordinating Committee will
consider adoption of the LRTP 2055 on:

Wednesday, September 17, 2025, 6:00 p.m.

Draft LRTP 2055 Link: 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 10 of 108

http://www.crcog.net/lrtp2055


Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) 
c/o Centre Regional Planning Agency  Centre County Planning and Community Development Office 
2643 Gateway Drive, Suite #4   Willowbank Office Building 
State College, PA  16801    420 Holmes Street 
Phone (814) 231-3050 / FAX (814) 231-3083 Bellefonte, PA  16823-1488 
www.crcog.net     Phone (814) 355-6791 / FAX (814) 355-8661 
      www.co.centre.pa.us 
 
TO: CCMPO Projects, Technical and Coordinating Committees 
 Centre County Municipal Managers and Secretaries 
 Interested Parties Mailing Lists 

FROM: Anne Messner 
 Senior Transportation Planner 

DATE: June 30, 2025 

SUBJECT: Opportunity for Public Comment 

The Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) is responsible for preparing a 
Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) that serves as the official transportation plan for Centre 
County.  The LRTP documents current and future transportation needs, identifies long-term 
projects to meet those needs, and helps to guide decision-making about transportation 
improvements in Centre County. 
 
The DRAFT LRTP 2055 and Air Quality Conformity Report will be available for public 
review during a 30-day period beginning Monday, June 30, 2025 and concluding on 
Thursday, July 31, 2025. 
 
The DRAFT LRTP 2055 and DRAFT Air Quality Conformity documents are on the web at:   
https://eftp.mbakerintl.com/messages/dfHDJ3tA4QZ3eV7ns1E0C9/attachments/F8tlcGFDqAicIs
2Htq7g9y/download/CCMPO%20LRTP%20Draft%206-25-2025-1pm-reduced.pdf 
 
Paper copies of the documents are available for review at the following locations: 
 

• Centre Regional Planning Agency (CRPA), State College 
• Centre Area Transportation Authority (CATA) Customer Service Center, State College 
• Schlow Centre Region Library, State College 
• Centre County Planning and Community Development Office (CCPCDO), Willowbank 

Building, Bellefonte 
• Philipsburg Borough Municipal Building, Philipsburg 
• Snow Shoe Borough Municipal Building, Snow Shoe 
• Centre Hall Area Branch Library, Centre Hall 
• Milesburg Borough Municipal Building, Milesburg 

 
Translation services are available upon request. 
 
Members of the public are encouraged to provide input by: 
 

• Calling (814) 231-3050 
• Participating in a public meeting/open house on Tuesday, July 22, 2025 
• Emailing amessner@crcog.net 
• Through the CCMPO website at:  www.crcog.net/lrtp2055  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 11 of 108

http://www.crcog.net/
http://www.co.centre.pa.us/
https://eftp.mbakerintl.com/messages/dfHDJ3tA4QZ3eV7ns1E0C9/attachments/F8tlcGFDqAicIs2Htq7g9y/download/CCMPO%20LRTP%20Draft%206-25-2025-1pm-reduced.pdf
https://eftp.mbakerintl.com/messages/dfHDJ3tA4QZ3eV7ns1E0C9/attachments/F8tlcGFDqAicIs2Htq7g9y/download/CCMPO%20LRTP%20Draft%206-25-2025-1pm-reduced.pdf
http://www.crcog.net/lrtp2055


CCMPO Committees, Municipal Managers, Interested Parties 
June 30, 2025  
Page 2  

The CCMPO Coordinating Committee will consider adoption of the LRTP 2055 at its meeting 
scheduled for 6pm on Wednesday, September 17, 2025. 

The CCMPO will hold two public meeting/open house sessions to receive input regarding the 
DRAFT LRTP 2055: 

Tuesday, July 22, 2025 

3pm – 4:30pm (Session I) 
6pm – 7:30pm (Session II) 

Centre Region COG Building 
Forum Room 

2643 Gateway Drive 
State College, PA  16801 

For more information on attending and participating in the public meeting/open house, please 
contact:  Anne Messner (Senior Transportation Planner) at amessner@crcog.net, or by calling 
(814) 231-3050.

The CCMPO is committed to compliance with applicable nondiscrimination regulations and 
polices.  Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 
modification of policies or procedures to participate in a program, service, or activity of the 
CCMPO, should contact Jim Saylor (Principal Transportation Planner) as soon as possible, but no 
later than 48 hours before the scheduled event.  

Complaints that a program, service, or activity of the CCMPO is not accessible to persons with 
disabilities should also be directed to Jim Saylor (Principal Transportation Planner).  

The public meeting/open house will be recorded and made available for rebroadcast through 
online sources.   

For more information about the DRAFT LRTP 2055 and 2025 Air Quality Conformity 
Determination Report, please contact Anne Messner (Senior Transportation Planner), Centre 
Regional Planning Agency (CRPA), 2643 Gateway Drive, Suite 4, State College, PA  16801; 
Phone:  (814) 231-3050; Email:  amessner@crcog.net.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 12 of 108



Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services 

May 28, 2025 

Borough of Bellefonte 

Borough Council & Mayor 

301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200 

Bellefonte, Pa 16823 

To our local elected officials, 

You are invited to attend our 7th annual joint meeting on Wednesday July 30, 2025 at 7:00pm for all 

township supervisors, borough council members and mayors served by Bellefonte EMS to discuss the status 

of our organization and municipal financial contributions to support the emergency medical service (EMS) 

agency serving the residents, businesses, and visitors in your community.  Borough managers and township 

secretaries are also invited as we recognize that they play an important role in your daily operation. 

We will review the progress made over the past year and the positive impact your municipal contributions 

are having on our operation.  Discussion will also include updates on current State legislation effecting 

EMS reimbursements and other issues that impact EMS along with our goals and needs for the future.  

Discussion of equitable funding participation by each municipality will also be an agenda topic.     

Your assistance is necessary for financial support so that we can continue to provide rapid and reliable 

emergency response capability to the residents and businesses of your community into the future.   

The meeting will be held at Bellefonte EMS, 369 Phoenix Avenue in Bellefonte with tours of our station, 

equipment and vehicles at 6:30pm with light refreshments and begin the informational presentation with 

discussion at 7:00pm.   

As you develop your 2026 municipal budgets, we look forward to continuing our joint solution to the issues 

facing local EMS today.  Please RSVP to ssrhoatbems.net by Monday July 28th so that we can assure 

adequate seating and materials.  Thank you and we look forward to your participation.   

Sincerely, 

S. Scott Rhoat BS, NRP

Executive Director/Chief

369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, Pa. 16823 
Office (814) 355-2907, Fax (814) 355-8702 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 13 of 108

mailto:ssrhoat@bems.net


From: GENEVIEV SHULICK <gshulick@comcast.net>  
Sent: Monday, June 16, 2025 1:49 PM 
To: Steven Barr <sbarr@bellefontepa.gov> 
Cc: Matt Auman <mauman@bellefontepa.gov>; Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov>; Joanne Tosti-
Vasey <jtosti-vasey@bellefontepa.gov>; Barbara Dann <Bdann@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: Request for ordinance on spraying of hazardous herbicides 

The absentee slum slumlord owner of 129 East Linn Street has again sprayed 
hazardous herbicide on the front step leading up to the rental house, in the area where 
tenants have to walk to their garbage cans, in the patio, and around the fire 
hydrant.  Herbicide has also seeped into flowers in my yard along the wooden wall 
separating the properties, and fumes would have wafted up to the windows in my 
master bathroom and office.  

The Borough did not acknowledge or reply to my email of February 8, 2025.  The lack of 
response and action is very disappointing and unacceptable.  An argument that the 
Borough cannot take action against the use of substances that are hazardous to the 
health of residents cannot be supported.  

Genevieve Shulick 

135 East Linn Street 

Bellefonte 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 14 of 108

mailto:gshulick@comcast.net
mailto:sbarr@bellefontepa.gov
mailto:mauman@bellefontepa.gov
mailto:jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov
mailto:jtosti-vasey@bellefontepa.gov
mailto:Bdann@bellefontepa.gov


Response sent: 
On 06/16/2025 3:51 PM CDT Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov> wrote: 

Good Afternoon Geneviev, 

Your request was included in the council packet under communications at the February 18th Bellefonte 
Borough Council meeting. At that meeting council recommended that the ordinance committee review 
it. 

The committee met to discuss this March 27, 2025 and gave the attached report to council at the April 
21 meeting (link to meeting) at 32:12 on the video Joanne Tosti-Vasey reported: 

 https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/GNduNoua2rBThhw6N4PRP9OCSPf6B2ru/playlists/4806/media/
947118?autostart=false&showtabssearch=true&fullscreen=false   

The committee recommended posting information about the pesticide hypersensitive individuals list on 
the borough website, and posting on the borough website  days and times the Borough would spray to 
better inform tenants. Joanne also asked that council vote on revising the property maintenance code to 
require landlords and the borough to notify tenants on the pesticide sensitivity registry when the 
landlord or the borough was spraying within 500 feet of a residence. This was asked to be put on the 
agenda for a council meeting (May 5th ), but I don’t see that it was on an agenda yet. 

I am glad I was able to talk to you about your request this afternoon when you stopped by the office, I 
hope this email answers some of your concerns and assures you that council has discussed the request. I 
will let you know when the requested change will be voted on, please let me know if you have further 
concerns or questions. 

Thanks, 

Julie 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 15 of 108

mailto:jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/GNduNoua2rBThhw6N4PRP9OCSPf6B2ru/playlists/4806/media/947118?autostart=false&showtabssearch=true&fullscreen=false
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/GNduNoua2rBThhw6N4PRP9OCSPf6B2ru/playlists/4806/media/947118?autostart=false&showtabssearch=true&fullscreen=false


On Wednesday June 18, Geneviev had further questions, responses were sent to the questions in red 
below: 

Good Afternoon Geneviev, 

Please see answers to your questions below in red, I hope this helps resolve some of your questions. I 
will update you on further council action and include your letter in communications to council.   

Regards, 
Julie 

From: GENEVIEV SHULICK <gshulick@comcast.net>  
Sent: Wednesday, June 18, 2025 1:28 PM 
To: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov> 
Cc: Joanne Tosti-Vasey <jtosti-vasey@bellefontepa.gov>; Matt Auman <mauman@bellefontepa.gov>; 
Barbara Dann <Bdann@bellefontepa.gov>; Steven Barr <sbarr@bellefontepa.gov> 
Subject: Request for ordinance on spraying of hazardous herbicides 

Julie,  

Issues remain. 

1. I have reviewed the "Registry of Pesticide Hypersensitive Individuals Application."
It mentions only pesticides and does not refer to herbicides.  Do the PA Department of
Agriculture regulations concerning this issue also cover herbicides?  Yes or no?
Yes, in Pennsylvania a pesticide is defined as " any substance or mixture of substances
intended for preventing, destroying, repelling, or mitigating any pest, and any substance
or mixture of substances intended for use as a plant regulator, defoliant, or desiccant.”
This includes herbicides also.

2. Your information says that the Department of Agriculture oversees the licensing of
"pesticide applicators."
It says that a license is needed if the applicator is spraying chemicals around
"multifamily housing with four or more units."
I believe that 129 East Linn has at least four or more units.  Is the owner or their
herbicide applicator licensed to spray the chemicals?  Yes or no.
The Borough does not monitor who has or should have the license, and Centre region
code does not monitor this either since the PA Department of Agriculture enforces the
regulation. It is suggested that the Department of Agriculture for region 5, (717) 705-
5500 can be contacted for a listing of who is licensed.

3. Why does the burden for notification fall on the individual resident who has no
responsibility for use of these chemicals instead of the main burden falling on the
perpetrator of the use of these chemicals.  This is unfair.
Notification must be given by the licensed applicators, they can only notify residents
with contact information supplied by the residents on the sensitivity registry. This is part

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 16 of 108

mailto:gshulick@comcast.net
mailto:jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov
mailto:jtosti-vasey@bellefontepa.gov
mailto:mauman@bellefontepa.gov
mailto:Bdann@bellefontepa.gov
mailto:sbarr@bellefontepa.gov


of the PA pesticide law. Council is currently considering a request to require landlords 
and the borough to notify tenants on the hypersensitivity list (from our previous e-mail).   
   
4.  Why does the innocent individual property owner have to expose their medical 
information, address, telephone number. physician's name and address, etc. to the 
public by applying on the registry?  This is private information.  This seems designed to 
deter innocent individual property owners from submitting the form and to reduce the 
spraying responsibility of absentee landlords.  This is unfair. 
 
From the Pennsylvania code 128.111 which talks about the registry: “Pesticide-
hypersensitive individuals who want to be on the registry shall provide to the 
Department their name and primary residence including street address, city, state, zip 
code, county, daytime telephone number and nighttime telephone number. Each 
individual shall also provide an alternate telephone number where notification 
information can be conveyed. Individuals may also provide secondary locations, 
addresses and associated telephone numbers to be maintained as part of their listing.” 
The contact information is needed because there are requirements in the regulation to 
have a record that individuals were contacted and current information so residents can 
be notified if their address is within the intended spray area. 
   
5.  You say that the registry is distributed annually to "commercial and public pesticide 
businesses" but the sprayer in the case of 129 East Linn Street has been the 
owner.  How do we know if he receives distribution of this registry?  If he does not 
receive the registry, then he is not required to notify neighbors and tenants (assuming 
there are more than 4 units)?  
Yes, that is correct, the registry is only given to licensed individuals, so anyone without 
a license would not receive the list.  
 
Kindly help resolve these issues.  
   
Genevieve Shulick  
gshulick@comcast.net  
814-355-5235  
   
 

 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 17 of 108

mailto:gshulick@comcast.net


Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 18 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 19 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 20 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 21 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 22 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 23 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 24 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 25 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 26 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 27 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 28 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 29 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 30 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 31 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 32 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 33 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 34 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 35 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 36 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 37 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 38 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 39 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 40 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 41 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 42 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 43 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 44 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 45 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 46 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 47 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 48 of 108



 

 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

                           Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 

June 16, 2025 - 7:30 p.m. 
301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 

www.bellefonte.net 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER (Council President Barbara Dann) The June 16, 2025 meeting of the 

Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 p.m.  

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

III. MEMBERS PRESENT  Mr. Kent Bernier 

     Mr. Randall Brachbill  

     Ms. Deborah Cleeton, Pro Tempore   

     Ms. Barbara Dann, President 

     Mr. Douglas Johnson, Vice President 

     Ms. Shawna McKean 

     Ms. Rita Purnell 

     Ms. Johanna Sedgwick     

     Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey 

     Mr. Christian Larson, Jr. Council Member 

     Ms. Jalyn Meckley,  Jr. Council Member 

     Mayor Buddy Johnson 

   

STAFF PRESENT   Mr. Don Holderman, Interim Borough Manager 

     Mr. Bill Witmer, Chief of Police 

     Ms. Julie Brooks, Manager for Grants & Special Projects 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take official 

action on it with some exceptions. The Council can act on matters relating to potential or real 

emergencies. Council may add a matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. 

The Council should state the reason why the action item is being added to the agenda. Council 

may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

NONE 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

Borough Council intends to take public comment related to the motion that is on the floor after it 

has been duly made and seconded. The order of comment will be public comment and then council 

comment including, proposed amendments by council members. If amendments are proposed to 

the original motion, the public will then only comment on the amendment(s) before final votes are 

taken. You must be a Bellefonte resident, non-profit representative, business owner, or an official 

representative of another governmental agency. Speakers shall identify themselves by name and 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 49 of 108

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

June 16, 2025 

Page 2 

 

 

street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) 

minutes. 

Ms. Dann commented that Council was in an executive session before the meeting to discuss 

personnel matters.  

 

VI.  COMMUNICATIONS (written) 

Bellefonte EMS 7th Annual Joint Meeting invitation for 7:00 pm on Wednesday, July 30th, 

2025. The meeting will be held at Bellefonte EMS, 369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, PA. 

Please RSVP to Scott Rhoat at ssrhoat@bems.net by Monday, July 28th, 2025. No council 

action is needed. 

 

Legal Description of the Lot Addition: Portion of Dunlop St. Owned by Borough of 

Bellefonte to be Transferred to Bellefonte Waterfront Associates #1 and #2, LLC, Bellefonte 

Waterfront. Call for a motion/2nd to approve the legal description as stated. 

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Brachbill seconded to approve the legal description as stated. 

No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA (will be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise noted) 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a 

single motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council 

request specific items to be removed for separate action. 

 

Consent Agenda includes the following items: 

1. Finance Financial Statements will be provided in the July 7th, 2025, Council 

Meeting Packet. 

2. General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes May 19th, 2025 

3. Finance Stover McGlaughlin Invoice May 2025 

 

Brachbill motioned, and McKean seconded to approve the Consent Agenda. No further discussion, 

roll call vote, and motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 50 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

June 16, 2025 

Page 3 

 

 

VIII. REPORTS   

Mayor Johnson  

Mayor Johnson thanked the Bellefonte Cruise organizing committee for another wonderful 

community event. 

 

Police  (Acting Chief Witmer) 

May 2025 Report was included in tonight’s packet. 

 

Parking 

Report Submitted.  

 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 

1. Recommended for approval (Specific motions are stated in the OCA memo): 

Mr. Tom Songer, project planner, was present at the meeting tonight to highlight various 

details and improvements of the project, including: 

○ 93 room national brand, boutique hotel, with a farm to table restaurant with a 

rooftop experience that can seat approximately 75 people inside and 75 people 

outside. The project will have 2 buildings with a brick paved promenade between 

the 2 buildings that will provide an outside area for visitors. 

○ There is no longer a large meeting room space, the space for that was converted to 

hotel rooms. 

○ There will be 90 surface parking spaces and 265 spaces in the garage – mostly on 

levels 2 and 3. The garage will have the latest technology for payment including 

paying online and a ticket kiosk. 

○ 43 custom designed, 2-3 bedroom condominium units on floors 4, 5, 6.  

 

Motion/2nd to conditionally approve the Preliminary / Final Bellefonte 

Waterfront Land Development Plan, contingent on:  

1) Borough Council approval of the legal agreement to vacate Dunlop Street 

2) A completed Transportation Impact Study and Highway Occupancy Permit from  

     PennDOT, or written confirmation from PennDOT, indicating that neither is required   

     for this project 

3) The finalized recorded covenant/easement of four of the eight acres on a parcel     

     adjacent to the east side of the Bellefonte Wastewater Treatment Plant, to be used    

     as a riparian zone offset set aside for the Waterfront Project (as described to the  

     Authority board at the March 2025 and April 2025 meetings.) 

4) The approved NPDES permit 

 

Bernier motioned, and Brachbill seconded to approve these final plans. Discussion 

included the project developer speaking to Council to highlight various details regarding 

the project. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 51 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

June 16, 2025 

Page 4 

 

 

 

Ms. Thompson will be on vacation from July 4th and will return to work on July 28th. 

Julie Brooks will step in to handle any urgent OCA matters in her absence. 

 

(Interim) Borough Manager  

For the record, Council signed the bid documents for the traffic light at Zion Road and 

Parkview Blvd. The bid opening will be August 4th. 

 

IX. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Environmental & Parks Committee (Tosti-Vasey) 

The Parks Committee held a walkthrough of Talleyrand Park on May 21, 2025, and a 

walkthrough of Governors Park on June 12, 2025. They made lists of improvements and 

repairs that need to be completed at both parks. 

 

Finance and Administration Committee (Cleeton) 

The committee met to discuss the search for a new Borough Manager. The committee will 

meet again tomorrow evening at 5:30 pm in the Oak Room. 

 

Infrastructure and Public Works Committee (Brachbill) 

The meeting for June is cancelled and the committee will meet the last Thursday in July.  

 

Ordinance ad hoc Committee (Tosti-Vasey) 

 The committee met on Thursday June 12 to discuss various ordinances.  

 

Streets Committee (Johnson) 

The Committee meets every second Tuesday of every month, the public is invited to attend.  

Mr. Johnson offered various details regarding street repairs completed and recommended.  

The next meeting is Tuesday July 8, 2025 at 4pm in the Oak Room. 

 

Public Transport Task Force Committee (Cleeton/Tosti-Vasey) 

June 2025 report 

Report on the PSAB Conference and Transit for All PA Lobby Day 

 

 

X. LIAISON REPORTS. 

Reports were submitted and reviewed. 

 

 

XI.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 

2025 CDBG Project Selection.  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned, and Brachbill seconded to approve the Stamped Crosswalks at the 

intersection of High Street and Water Street for the 2025 CDBG Project. No discussion. 

Roll call vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 52 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

June 16, 2025 

Page 5 

 

 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Brachbill motioned, and McKean seconded to approve Centre County, on behalf of 

Bellefonte Borough, to submit an application to the Pennsylvania Department of 

Community and Economic Development for FFY 2025 Community Development Block 

Grant Entitlement funding for the Stamped Crosswalk Project. No discussion. Roll call 

vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Centre County Airport Authority Volunteer Application.  

 

Johnson motioned and Bernier seconded to approve Kerry Uhler’s volunteer application 

for the Centre County Airport Authority. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Centre County Airport Authority Memo to Appointing Entities. 

 

Bernier motioned and Johnson seconded to allow Centre County Airport Authority to 

review all applications and submit a recommendation to Council for future appointments. 

No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Update on the Suspension Bridge Project.  No council action is needed. 

 

Governor’s Park Batting Cage.  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned, and Bernier seconded to approve the Batting Cage as proposed. 

No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 53 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

June 16, 2025 

Page 6 

 

 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Friends of Talleyrand Lease Agreement. Council feedback due to Mr. Holderman by 

Wednesday, June 18th, 2025. 

 

XII. NEW BUSINESS 

Pennsylvania State Association of Boroughs Conference Recap and 2025 Resolutions Adopted 

by PSAB Voting Delegates. No council action is needed. 

o 13/14 Resolutions were approved. 

o Ms. Julie Brooks was awarded the Certified Boroughs Award. 

 

9th Annual Dylan Crunick Memorial Charity Baseball Tournament request for fee waiver.  

 

Bernier motioned, and Brachbill seconded to approve the fee waiver for use of 

Governor’s Park Baseball Field for the 9th Annual Dylan Crunick Memorial Charity 

Baseball Tournament scheduled for August 9th & 10th, 2025. Discussion included Tosti-

Vasey commenting that this non-profit is located outside of the Bellefonte Borough, and 

Mayor Johnson encouraging Council to waive the fee, as the Crunick family is still an 

integral part of our community, and 100% of the proceeds from this tournament go 

towards childhood cancer research. Roll call vote. Motion to waive the fee carried with 7 

yes and 2 no votes.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            no Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             no 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Loading of compost memo for August, September, and October 2025.  

 

Cleeton motioned and Johnson seconded to approve loading of compost into vehicles 

three Saturdays in 2025 at the Musser Lane Compost Facility. Discussion included Mr. 

Johnson requesting the fee be changed from $20 to $15.  

 

Mr. Johnson motioned to amend the fee from $20 per scoop to $15 per truckload. Purnell 

seconded.  Friendly motion/amendment. Roll call vote. Motion to approve the amended 

motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

The Public Transit Services Task Force proposed calculated rates for Bellefonte Borough 

residents' use of Centre County Transportation Services.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 54 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

June 16, 2025 

Page 7 

 

 

 

Bernier motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve the proposed calculated rates for 

Bellefonte Borough Residents' use of Centre County Transportation Services. Discussion 

regarded various clarifications of these rates and services. Mr. Lomison was invited to 

speak to Council to clarify the rates and services. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Approval of Resolution No. 06162025-01 Adopting the Police Department’s updated Policies.  

 

Tosti-Vasey motioned and Brachbill seconded to approve Resolution No. 06162025-01 

Adopting the Police Department’s updated Policies. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion 

carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

Civil Service Commission Promotions for Sergeant and Corporal. Police Chief Witmer is 

recommending the selection of Officer Macy Neideigh for Sergeant and Officer Robert Holt 

for Corporal. Chief Witmer is recommending the selection of Officer Lisa Larkin for Detective.  

 

Brachbill motioned and Bernier seconded to select Officer Macy Neideigh as Sergeant, 

Officer Robert Holt as Corporal, and Officer Lisa Larkin as Detective for the Bellefonte 

Borough Police Department. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yes 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yes 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

The above-listed officers were appointed to and sworn into their promotions. Chief Witmer noted 

that Officer Larkin has been nominated for and selected as a finalist for Law Enforcement Officer 

of the Year, which will be announced next month. 

 

 

XIII. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting 

agenda. Speakers shall identify themselves by name, street, municipality, if outside of the 

Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes maximum. 

 NONE 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 55 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

June 16, 2025 

Page 8 

 

 

 

 

XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER  

Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 

Several members congratulated the Officers on their promotions and thanked them for their 

service. 

 

Deb Cleeton thanked Council for approving the CATA Transit. She stated she has been using 

the new service and is very pleased with it, and is happy to answer any questions the public 

or council members may have. 

 

Mrs. Purnell mentioned that Christian Larson, former Junior Council Member, was selected 

as the Elks' “Teen of the Month” for April.  

 

XV. ADJOURNMENT   

Brachbill motioned to adjourn the meeting, Tosti-Vasey seconded. Meeting was adjourned at 8:55 

PM.  

 

 
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 56 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 57 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 58 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 59 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 60 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 61 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 62 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 63 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 64 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 65 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 66 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 67 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 68 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 69 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 70 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 71 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 72 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 73 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 74 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 75 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 76 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 77 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 78 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 79 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 80 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 81 of 108



Memo 
To:  Council  

From:  Donald L Holderman 

Date:  July 7, 2025 

Re:  SEDA-COG Railroad Spur on Potter Street 

 
Dating back to 2023, SEDA-COG Joint Rail Authority approached the Borough about 
donating a parcel of property (we’ve been referring to it as the spur) along Potter 
Street.  I have been in contact with Kyle Postupack to determine if this was still an 
option.  SEDA-COG is still interested in donating the property (less the metal).  I 
assume part of the hold-up is that there appeared to be some indecision on how to 
transfer the property and Attorney’s for both the rail authority and County were 
involved.  At any rate, it was determined the best approach is to have a survey and 
subdivision completed.  I’ve contacted PennTerra about getting an estimate of the 
cost to have this work done and it is $9,800.00.  In addition, if we were to take the 
property as is with SEDA-COG Railroad leaving the rail lines, we would need to pay 
the cost of the metal, which $18,932.00 to SEDA-COG Joint Rail Authority.  Thus, to 
have the property donated to the Borough would still cost the Borough in the vicinity 
of $29,000.00 when you add the first two expenses and the Centre County Office of 
Recorder’s expenses. 
 
After getting to this point, I asked Lori McGowan if funds were budgeted last year 
during the budget process for the property and the answer was no, it was not 
budgeted. I believe Council approved moving forward with the property sometime 
late 2022 when we were approached by the Authority.   
 
Question #1, is Council still interested in the property?  If Yes, 
 
Question #2 Can $29,000.00 be used out of the Special Projects Fund to 
cover the costs to make the transfer happen?  
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 82 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 83 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 84 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 85 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 86 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 87 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 88 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 89 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 90 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 91 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 92 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 93 of 108



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 94 of 108



ARTICLE I 

Regulations 

[Adopted 11-18-20191] 

§ 405-1. Authority of Recreation Committee. 

The Park and Recreation Committee of Council shall possess all the authority vested in a borough 

recreation board, as provided by law, for the purpose of supervising and maintaining the parks of 

the Borough and any other park that may hereafter be acquired or established by the Borough as 

an official park of the Borough. 

§ 405-2. General regulations. 

The following rules and regulations are hereby established for the management and protection of 

the parks of the Borough, and such regulations shall apply to all parks belonging to, leased by or 

otherwise acquired or used by the Borough as official parks of the Borough. 

A. Talleyrand Park and the Waterfront Walkway shall be open to the public 24 hours per day. 

Governors Park shall be open to the public from sunrise until 11:00 p.m. All other Borough 

parks shall be open to the public daily between sunrise and sunset. The Borough will open 

and close the parks based on the weather but typically open in April and close in October or 

November. Parks close once the weather dictates as there are no formal means of snow 

removal and the Borough closes the restrooms and turns off the water before freezing may 

occur. These dates are likely to change year to year. 

B. No person shall injure, deface, remove, cut or damage any tree, plant, shrub, building or 

structure in a park or any property of the Borough or of the Park and Recreation Committee 

located within a park. 

C. No person shall remove any bench, seat or table from a park or change the location thereof 

without permission from the Committee. 

D. No person shall conduct himself within a park so as to disturb any other person using the 

park for recreation or enjoyment of nature or disturb or disrupt any event, activity, or special 

event approved by Borough Council for which a permit has been granted. 

E. No person shall hold any meeting or gathering assembled by advertising or public notice or 

any gathering assembled and composed of 10 or more persons within the limits of a park (the 

criterion of 10 or more persons does not apply to Talleyrand Park; see § 405-5, Talleyrand 

Park reservations) without having first made application for a permit therefore to the 

Committee. Such permit shall indicate the spot in the park for such gathering or meeting. No 

such meeting or gathering shall be held at any other location within the park. The application 

for such a permit shall be in the name of the person who shall be responsible for seeing that 

all refuse left by the group shall be placed in the proper containers before leaving the park. 

Such permit shall be issued at a fee to be established by resolution of the Borough Council. 

The purpose of such fees shall be to defray the expenses of issuing the permit and supervising 

1. Editor's Note: This ordinance also superseded former Article I, Regulations, adopted 4-6-1992 by Ord. No. 1063 (Ch. 1060 of the 

1979 Codified Ordinances), as amended. 

Borough of Bellefonte, PA

§ 405-1 § 405-2

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/BE2966 on 2025-07-03

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 95 of 108



such activity. Permits shall be valid only for the day for which they are issued. 

F. No person shall set up any booth, table or stand for the sale of any article within the limits of 

a park without the consent of the Committee, which shall have the authority to refuse such 

consent in any instance. 

G. No person shall dispose of any waste or garbage in a park except in receptacles designated 

for such purpose. 

H. No person shall injure or deface a notice, rule or regulation posted at any place within a park 

by the authority of the Committee or any other authority of the Borough. No person shall 

post at any place within a park any notice other than by the authority of such Board. 

I. No person shall maintain any open fire within a park except in the stoves and fireplaces 

maintained for that purpose and located by the Committee. Stoves of the Coleman propane, 

heat tablet, charcoal or similar type may be maintained and used by persons utilizing parks, 

upon park premises, so long as they are maintained, used and operated in a safe and careful 

manner by the operators thereof. The use of such stoves may be further regulated by the 

Committee. 

J. No person shall procure firewood from any part of a park without permission of the 

Committee. 

K. No person shall bathe or swim in any area of a park except at such place set apart for that 

purpose and then only when there is a lifeguard in attendance. 

L. No person shall engage in hunting or fishing within a park or along the waterfront 

sidewalk(s) located between High Street and Lamb Street. Fishing is permitted along the 

waterfront sidewalk(s) located between High Street and Lamb Street as long as the individual 

is physically in the water. No one is permitted to fish from the stream bank or on top of the 

lower wall. 

M. The speed limit on all roads within park limits shall be 10 miles per hour. No person shall 

exceed such limit. 

N. No two-wheel motorized vehicle shall be permitted within the confines of a park unless it is 

properly licensed and registered with the commonwealth under the Vehicle Code of 

Pennsylvania. Such two-wheel motor vehicles shall have affixed thereto a valid Pennsylvania 

registration plate and sticker. 

O. Land motor vehicles of the two-wheel or four-wheel variety shall be operated only on those 

roads, streets or alleys located in the confines of the parks. No land motorized vehicle shall 

be operated off such roads, streets or alleys within a park without the express permission of 

the Committee. Such permission shall be in writing to the operator of such land motor 

vehicle. Official vehicles of the Borough or any contractor working for the Borough or the 

Committee are exempt from the requirements of this subsection. 

P. No person shall bring any alcoholic beverage into a park, either for his/her own use or for the 

use of any other person without permission of council. No person shall bring such beverage 

upon the premises of a park or upon the ways, roads or adjoining such park without 

Borough of Bellefonte, PA

§ 405-2 § 405-2

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/BE2966 on 2025-07-03

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 96 of 108



§ 405-3. Appointment of Superintendent of Parks. 

Council may annually, by resolution, appoint a Superintendent of Parks after consultation with the 

Park and Recreation Committee of Council. Such resolution may specify the duties, obligations 

and privileges of such Superintendent. 

§ 405-4. Designation of official Borough parks. 

§ 405-5. Park reservations. 

permission of council. 

Q. (Reserved) 

R. (Reserved) 

S. No person shall ride or use a bicycle, pedal-cycle, skateboard, e-vehicle, or roller blades in 

Talleyrand Park with the exception of areas where there is signage designating it allowable. 

No person shall ride or use a bicycle, pedal-cycle, skateboard, e-vehicle, or roller blades 

along the waterfront sidewalk located from High Street to Lamb Street. 

T. No person or group of persons shall engage in a baseball or softball game, or in a practice for 

the same, except on the playing fields designated for such purposes. 

U. All official Borough parks, and along the two sidewalks and/or wall along the waterfront, 

shall be designated as tobacco- and nicotine-free areas. This includes the use of a lighted 

cigar, cigarette, pipe, or any tobacco-containing substance or of an electronic cigarette. 

A. The following parks are hereby established as official parks of the Borough. Legal 

descriptions of such parks are attached to original Ordinance No. 706, adopted August 8, 

1973, and are hereby made a part hereof as if fully set forth herein: 

(1) Talleyrand Park. 

(2) Governors Park. 

(3) Masullo Park. 

(4) Parkview Heights Park. 

(5) High Street, Railroad Park. 

(6) Krauss Park. 

(7) Waterfront Walkway. 

B. The official parks set forth in Subsection A hereof are hereby placed under the authority and 

direction of the Park and Recreation Committee of Council, its successors and assigns, and 

shall be subject to the provisions of this article. 

A. A permit shall be required for all reservations. 

Borough of Bellefonte, PA

§ 405-2 § 405-5

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/BE2966 on 2025-07-03

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 97 of 108



§ 405-6. Posting of no-smoking signs. 

Notice of smoking prohibitions contained in this article shall be conspicuously posted by signs 

stating "Tobacco- and nicotine-free area/Young Lungs at Play." 

§ 405-7. Violations and penalties. 

See Chapter 1, Article III, General Penalty, of the Code for penalties for violations of this article. 

B. Reservations for the use of all parks will be issued in writing by the Borough Manager, 

authorizing groups and/or individuals to reserve the park for special events in accordance 

with the rules and regulations for use of a park as approved by Borough Council from time 

to time. The reservation, on a form executed by the Borough Manager, shall entitle the holder 

either to the exclusive use of the gazebo side of Spring Creek or the park addition side of 

Spring Creek or the entire park during the period of the reservation. In addition, bathroom 

facilities will be available for the event, although not exclusively, as these facilities can be 

used by the public whenever they are open. In the event of a conflict in reservations, the first 

party in time to apply for a reservation shall take precedence over any subsequent application 

for a reservation. 

C. The fee for reservations for all parks shall be established by resolution of the Borough 

Council. As long as there is an agreement in place between the Bellefonte Area School 

District for the use of the Governors Park baseball field, they are exempt from this 

requirement. 

D. Any request for use of a park for more than one date must be approved in advance by the 

Bellefonte Borough Council. Each day shall incur an additional reservation. Not-for-profits 

based in Bellefonte Borough may request an exemption from the rental fee. The 

administrative fee and a damage deposit shall still be required. 

Borough of Bellefonte, PA

§ 405-5 § 405-7

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/BE2966 on 2025-07-03

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 98 of 108



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH
2025 COMPREHENSIVE FEE SCHEDULE 

1

Application Fee $35.00
New Construction, or Addition $0.0070 x Declared Cost*, OR $0.0070 x Square Foot Construction 

Cost x Square Footage (which ever is greater) (Most recent square foot 
construction cost as published by the International Code Council)

Renovation $0.0070 x Declared Cost*
Minimum Fee $55.50
Reinspection Fee $100.00
Demolition Fee $55.50

Application Fee $35.00 
New Construction 80% of the following: [$0.0070 x Declared Cost*, OR $0.0070 x Square 

Foot Construction Cost x Square Footage (which ever is greater) (Most 
recent square foot construction cost as published by the International 
Code Council)                                        

Minimum Fee $55.50
Reinspection Fee $100.00

Application Fee $75.00
New Construction, Renovation, or Addition $0.0070 x Declared Cost*, OR $0.0070 x Square Foot Construction 

Cost x Level of Renovation Multiplier x Square Footage (which ever is 
greater) (Most recent square foot construction cost as published by the 
International Code Council)      

Minimum Fee $55.50
Reinspection Fee $100.00
Demolition Fee $55.50

Square Feet Time in Hours
1,000 or less 2

1,001 to 2,500 2.75
2,501 to 10,000 3.5

10,001 to 25,000 4.5
25,001 to 75,000 6
75,001 to more 9.5

Life Safety Value (as determined at the time of 
inspection)

Inspection Frequency

100 or less 5 year interval
101 to 400 3 year interval

   401 or more Annually

Single Dwelling Unit, Townhouse, Mobile Home, 
Apartment, Condominium, or Duplex (per unit)

$47.00

Administrative Fee $4.00 per application
Lodging house, boarding house, tourist home, or 
rooms (per unit)

$42.00

Bed & Breakfast $50.00

Building Code Permit Fees - 1 and 2 Family Residential - New Industrialized Housing Only

Rental Housing Fee                                                                                                                       

*  The CRCA may request documentation supporting the declared project cost

Annual Permit Fee = T x $130.00 x R/ V (rounded to the nearest dollar)  
R = Reduction Factor = 1.0;  T = Estimated Inspection Time of Property; V= Inspection Frequency Value

Fire Safety Permits                                                                                                                     

BUILDING CODES, RENTAL HOUSING & ZONING

*  The CRCA may request documentation supporting the declared project cost

*  The CRCA may request documentation supporting the declared project cost

Building Code Permit Fees - 1 and 2 Family Residential

Building Code Permit Fees - Non-1 and 2 Family Residential

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 99 of 108



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH
2025 COMPREHENSIVE FEE SCHEDULE 

2

Change of management for rentals $50.00
Change of ownership for rentals $50.00
New Rental $50.00
Short Term Rental Fee $130.00/unit/year                                        

Potable drinking water well $56.00
$150.00

Written Verification of Expiration Date
     a. Residential Projects $100.00
     b. Commercial Projects $500.00
Permit extension fee shall be 25 percent of the 
original base permit fee, not to exceed $5,000.00

Submission fee $0
Review fee $130 x Staff Time in Hours                             

Submission fee $150
Review fee $130 x Staff Time in Hours                                     

Fee $130 x Staff Time in Hours                                       

Fee $195 x Staff Time in Hours                         

Fire Code Operational Permits $25.00 
Violations Fine of no less than $300.00, no more than $1,000.00, per occurrence. 

Every day shall be a new occurrence.   
Section 302.9, Weeds Violations First Violation, written warning. Second violation shall be $50.00. Every 

violation thereafter shall be $100.00.                                                 
Grass/Weeds Blown or Tossed into Street $25.00 
Safety and Property Maintenance Code Appeals 
Board

$50.00 unless applicant would request stenographer and solicitor, then 
applicant would pay actual cost to Borough.                   

Applicant Requested Accelerated Plan Review or Inspection Outside of Normal Business Hours

Commercial Plan Review Fees                                                                                                 

Work Not Covered By Permit Fees                                                                                        

Upon the second plan submission prior to the issuance of a permit if plan review comments have not been adequately 
addressed, or if additional comments are required to be generated, or any submission of modifications after the issuance of a 
permit

Base fee for all wells and boreholes subject to the 
Centre Region Building Safety and Property 
Maintenance Code with the exception of potable 
drinking water wells including up to five (5) ground 
penetrations  

The following fees are applicable to permits that are subject to the provisions of Pennsylvania Act 46 of 2010

Safety & Property Maintenance Code

Permit Expiration and Permit Renewal Fees                                                                            

Well and Borehole Permit Fee                                                                                                  

Additional penetrations beyond the five (5) 
penetrations covered in the base fee for up to and 
including an additional five (5) penetrations

$75.00

Rental Housing Fee  (con't)                                                                                                     

Residential Plan Review Fees                                                                                                                
Upon the second plan submission prior to the issuance of a permit if plan review comments have not been adequately 
addressed, or if additional comments are required to be generated, or any submission of modifications after the issuance of a 
permit

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 100 of 108



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH
2025 COMPREHENSIVE FEE SCHEDULE 

3

Zoning Permit Application $50.00 
Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance $500.00, plus additional fees (if required)              
Amendment to the Zoning Map $500.00, plus additional fees (if required)               
Zoning Permit (with site plan review) $275.00, plus additional fees (if required)            
Grant of Easement $300.00, plus additional fees (if required)             
Zoning Map (11" x 17") $2.00 
Street Vendor Permit $35.00 
Outside Cafe Permit $25.00, annually                                                    
Sign Permit Application First sign $50.00,each sign thereafter $30.00
Home Occupation Permit $50.00 

Zoning Variance $400.00
Challenges to the Validity of the Zoning Ordinance $350.00
Special Exception Permit $100.00
Appeal of the Determination of the Zoning Officer $100.00

Street Cut Application Fee $60.00 
6 month extension of a street opening permit $60.00 
Inspection Fee
     Up to & including three (3) square yards $60.00 
     Each additional square yard above three (3) $30.00 per square yard                                           
For Degradation Fees, contact Borough office
Deposit for Barricades/Cones $5.00/barricade or cone                                                      

Water Fee $6.45 per 1,000 gallons used, plus a $20.00 flat fee per quarter, for 
Corning Water Line Customers, additional $5.00/qtr flat rate to be set 
aside for capital improvements effective 1/1/17  

Water Connection Fee $2.53 per gallon or $607.20 per EDU (EDU is based on 240 gallons)                                                               

Water On $30.00 
Water Off $30.00 
Lien Letter Fee $5.00
Posting Fee $30.00 
Vacancy Application Charge $30.00
Bulk Water Fee $9.00 per 1,000 gallons, plus $7.00 per load
Sewer Fee $141.50 per quarter per unit up to 27,000 gallons, then $3.10/1,000 

gallons over 27,000 gallons           
Sewer Connection Fee (& inspection fee) $2.96 per gallon or $578.09 per EDU (based on 195.3 gallons)  
Sewer Dye Test $50.00 
Sewer Dye Test - less than 10 days notice $150.00 
B & B Sewer Fee $25.00/room/year
Fee for Final Numbers - less than 10 days notice $10.00 
Bulk Hauler's Fee $40.00 annually                                             
Sludge/Septic/Portable Toilets - Sewer $75.00/1,000 gallons                                      
Other Sources $144.00/1,000 gallons
Refuse Fee $66.80 per quarter per can for residential customers                            

For commercial customers, see attached schedule. 
Recycling Fee $22.50 per quarter                                   
Carry-Out Service for Refuse $18.00 per quarter, extra charge                            

WATER, SEWER AND REFUSE

Zoning Hearing Board Fees

Street Opening Fees

Zoning 

STREETS AND PUBLIC WORKS

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 101 of 108



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH
2025 COMPREHENSIVE FEE SCHEDULE 

4

Special Collections $38.00 for first 8 minutes, then $4.75 per additional minute unless on 
special list below                                                

Grass/Brush Can Colletion Fee $25.00/year per can                                     
Commercial Recycling (for businesses with large 
containers)

$65.00/month                                            

Refuse Cans, Bags or Recycling set out before 
hours

$50.00 first violation, $100.00 second violation, $300.00 third violation                                                        

Tipping for Commercial Tree Haulers at Landfill 2 axle = $75 per load: 1 axle = $50.00 per load

Bag of Compost $5.00/bag
Less than 10 day notice for Sewer dye test $100.00 
Service Call (during normal business hours) minimum of $50/hr times number of employees sent plus cost of any 

parts, etc                                                 
Call out (after normal business hours) Hourly rate (including overtime) times a minimum of 2 hours plus cost 

of parts, etc                
Freeze plate and gaskets $25.00 
Extra refuse can, brush or grass can $80.00 
Refuse Can Rental $10 per week, two container max, up to four weeks per year     (added 

 Replacement Curbside Bins $7.00 each                                                     
Commercial Refuse see attached
Compost from Musser Lane $15.00/1 cubic yard
1" Water Meter $335.00 
1 MXU $215.00 
3/4" Water Meter  (residential) $235.00 

Washing Machine $35.00 
Hot Water Heater $35.00 
Refrigerator $35.00 
Freezer $35.00 
Sofa or Couch $30.00 
Carpet $25.00 
Table $25.00 
Overstuffed Chair $25.00 
Television $35.00 
Stove $35.00 
Dryer $35.00 
Dresser $25.00 
Toilet $25.00 
Sink $20.00 
Mattress or Box-Spring (each) $25.00 
Microwave $25.00 
Air Conditioner $25.00 
Bed Frame $20.00 
Doors $20.00 
Desk $25.00 
Grill $25.00 
Dishwasher $30.00 
Dehumidifier $25.00 

Water, Sewer and Refuse  (con't)

Special Collections List

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 102 of 108



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH
2025 COMPREHENSIVE FEE SCHEDULE 

5

Parking Fine $10.00 for 1st violation, $12.00 for 2nd violation, $20.00 for 3rd 
violation on same day.  Two hour limit violation $8.00.  fire hydrant, 
restricted area, against traffic, on highway, alternate side, on sidewalk, 
blocked driveway, head in hold, across lines  $15.00              

EV Charging Station Parking Fine $35.00 
Dog/Cat Fine $25.00 for first day, $15.00 every day thereafter                                   
Meter Bag Rental $5.00 for 1/2 day, $10.00 per day                           
Boot Fee $50.00 
Accident Reports $15.00  (state regulated)                                         
False Alarms 1st and 2nd in a six month time period are free, then $100.00 per 

occurrence thereafter                             
Handicap parking fine $50.00  (state regulated)

Violation of Bellefonte Borough Ordinance 185-6 - 
False Alarms Penalties

Violators of any of the provisions of the chapter shall be fined $100.00 
plus the costs of prosecution, and, in default of payment of such fine 
and costs, shall be imprisioned not more than 3 days.  In addition, the 
Borough may collect all unpaid service fees, including a collection fee 
of $100.00, attorney's fees and costs in the same manner as municipal 
claims are now collected, including the filing of a lien for the collection 
of the same.                 

Curfew first offense - warning, $25.00 for second offense, for each subsequent 
parental offense, the fine will increased by an additional $25.00 (e.g.: 
$50.00 for the third offense, $75.00 for the fourth, $100.00 for the fifth 
and so on) to a maximum of $300.00.  Each offense after a fine of 
$300.00 is reached shall be a fine of $300.00.                         

Background Check Fee $8.00 
 

Governor's Park Pavilion Rental $50.00 with electric, $35.00 without electric           
Talleyrand Park Rental $30.00 non-refundable application fee ; $200.00 rental fee plus 

$100.00 deposit for gazebo or extended side.  $150.00 rental fee plus 
$100 deposit for sculpture garden area.  Deposit returned if park has 
been returned to original condition. 

Use of Baseball Field-daily $500.00/day
Use of Baseball Field-hourly $100.00/hour
Use of Gov Park Baseball Field for Sanctioned 
Baseball Programs

$80.00/day;  $1,000.00/season fee

Use of Pickleball Court or Soccer Field $25.00/day

Preliminary Plan $750.00 plus $15.00 per lot or dwelling unit for residential 
development, or $15.00 per commercial, recreational or industrial unit 
for commercial, recreational or industrial development.                                                                                                                          

Final Plan   (when preceded by a required 
Preliminary Plan)

$50.00 plus $15.00 per lot or dwelling unit for residential development, 
or $15.00 per commercial, recreational or industrial unit for commercial, 
recreational or industrial development.              

Final Plan   (when not preceded by a Preliminary 
Plan)

$750.00 plus $15.00 per lot or dwelling unit for residential 
development, or $15.00 per commercial, recreational or industrial unit 
for commercial, recreational or industrial development.           

Addition of a Lot Consolidation Plan (includes replot 
plans and lot line corrections plans)

$150.00 plus $15.00 per lot or dwelling unit for residential development 
or $15.00 per commercial, recreational or industrial development                                                      

PARKS AND RECREATION

POLICE

Subdivision or Land Development

LAND DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 103 of 108



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH
2025 COMPREHENSIVE FEE SCHEDULE 

6

Professional Engineer at cost billed to Borough                             
Technician II at cost billed to Borough                             
Technician I at cost billed to Borough                             
Secretarial at cost billed to Borough                          
Mileage at cost billed to Borough                            
Engineer at Meeting Fee at cost billed to Borough                            

Dumpster Permit $30.00 
Fire Department False Alarms 1st and 2nd in a six month time period are free, then $250.00 per 

occurrence thereafter                                             
Collections fee for Unpaid Police and Fire 
Department False Alarms

$75.00 if fee not paid within 30 days of invoice date                      

NSF Check Fee $20.00
Parking Permits North Lot: $45.00/month; South Lot: $45.00/month; West Lot: 

$35.00/month; $50/month per parking space plus the cost of sign 
installation for businesses requesting a maximum of two parking 
spaces per business in the West Lot                                             

Long-Term On-Street Parking R Permit (Resident) - $15.00/month
RC Permit (Resident Commuter) - $20.00/month
C Permit (Commuter) - $25.00/month                      
1 day permit for red area - $4.00

Parking permit in-house processing fee $5.00 
Solicitor's Permit $10.00/day; $25.00/week; $75.00/month; $150.00/year                                                                                

  Legal Fees at billed cost
HARB Application Fee $25.00 
Second Notice Fee $5.00 
Third Notice Fee $7.00 
Installation Permits for Incinerators and Domestic 
Fuel Burning Equipment

$10.00  Domestic Incinerators and fuel-burning equipment rated at 
150,000 BTU per hour input or more.  All other nondomestic 
incinerators and fuel-burning equipment, other than domestic, having 
the following rated input capacities:  $15.00 for 150,000 BTU per hour 
up to and including 2,000,000 BTU per hour; $25.00 for 2,000,001 BTU 
per hour up to and including 10,000,000 BTU per hour;  Process 
Weight:  $15.00 for less than 100 pounds per hour; $25.00 for one 
hundred tons per hour; $50.00 for one hundred tons per hour up to and 
including 200 tons per hour;  $100.00 for over 200 tons per hour.                                       

Solid Fuel Dealer's License $5.00 fuel peddler (any person who lawfully stores, distributes, 
advertises, sells, offers for sale or delivers solid fuel in quantities of 
less than 1,000 pounds in bag, basket, or bushel measures, and who 
operates only one vehicle per year); $10.00 for All other persons 
operating one or more vehicles per year; $2.00 for each additional 
vehicle per year                                          

Temporary RV Parking Permit $30.00 per occurrence
Earned Income Tax .60% (BASD 1.05%)
Local Services Tax $52.00 

Copies - B&W 25¢/page                                                                 
Copies - Color 35¢/page                                                                
Postage actual cost to Borough                                            
Stormwater Ordinance $15.00 
Subdivision Ordinance $10.00 
Zoning Ordinance $30.00, or available online for free                        

Borough Engineer Fees (Land Development)

In-Office Copies

GENERAL FEES

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 104 of 108



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH
2025 COMPREHENSIVE FEE SCHEDULE 

7

Sign Ordinance $5.00 
Comprehensive Plan $100.00, or available online for free                        

Case Loader (1996 model)   ST       $80.00                                                    $85.00
Case Extendahoe (4wd)       $80.00                                                    $85.00
Truck #18       $50.00                                                    $55.00
Skid-Steer       $55.00                                                    $60.00
4x4 Backhoe       $80.00                                                    $85.00
Ford T-tag Dump Truck (truck #3 & #9)       $30.00                                                    $35.00
Refuse truck/25 cubic yards  (#23)       $80.00                                                    $85.00
Bucket Truck       $40.00                                                    $45.00
Chevy 8-ton dump truck (truck #19 & #16)       $50.00                                                    $55.00
Chevy T-tag dump truck       $30.00                                                    $35.00
Pickups (when used as personal carriers)       $20.00                                                    $25.00
Air compressor       $20.00                                                    $25.00
Sewer Rod Machine       $15.00                                                    $20.00
Concrete Saw       $15.00                                                    $20.00
Jackhammer       $15.00                                                    $20.00
Street Sweeper     $100.00                                                  $105.00
Sewer Cleaner - high pressure water       $80.00                                                  $105.00
Water Dept Maintenance Van       $30.00                                                    $35.00
Generator       $15.00                                                    $20.00
Field Gymmy       $70.00                                                    $75.00
Tractor & Trailer/sludge hauling       $60.00                                                    $65.00
Chipper       $30.00                                                    $35.00
Leaf Vacuum     $130.00                                                  $135.00
Roller/Pavement       $40.00                                                    $45.00
Trailer       $25.00                                                    $30.00
Road Saw       $55.00                                                    $60.00
Scag Mower       $35.00                                                    $40.00
Pressure Washer  (10 hp, 2500 psi)       $10.00                                                    $20.00
Fork Lift       $30.00                                                    $35.00
Mini Excavator       $35.00                                                    $40.00    
NOTE:  All rates are per hour.  They DO NOT 
include operators.

                                                                                         

                                                   updated and approved 7/6/25

Approved December 16, 2024; Effective - January 1, 2025

 Equipment Hourly Rates                                          In Borough                                          Out of Borough

In-Office Copies (con't)

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 105 of 108



Centre County 2025 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 
Municipal Adoption Resolution 

Resolution No. 07072025-01 
 

Borough of Bellefonte, Centre County, Pennsylvania 

WHEREAS, the Borough of Bellefonte, Centre County, Pennsylvania, is most vulnerable to 
natural and human-caused hazards which may result in loss of life and property, economic 
hardship, and threats to public health and safety, and 

WHEREAS, Section 322 of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA 2000) requires state and 
local governments to develop and submit for approval to the President a mitigation plan that 
outlines processes for identifying their respective natural hazards, risks, and vulnerabilities, and 

WHEREAS, the Borough of Bellefonte acknowledges the requirements of Section 322 of DMA 
2000 to have an approved Hazard Mitigation Plan as a prerequisite to receiving post-disaster 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funds, and 

WHEREAS, the Centre County 2025 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update has been developed by the 
Centre County Office of Emergency Services and the Centre County Planning and Community 
Development Office in cooperation with other county departments, local municipal officials, 
institutional stakeholders, and the citizens of Centre County, and 

WHEREAS, a public involvement process consistent with the requirements of DMA 2000 was 
conducted to develop the Centre County 2025 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update, and 

WHEREAS, the Centre County 2025 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update recommends mitigation 
activities that will reduce losses to life and property affected by both natural and human-caused 
hazards that face the County and its municipal governments, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body for the Borough of Bellefonte: 

• The Centre County 2025 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update is hereby adopted as the official 
Hazard Mitigation Plan of the Borough of Bellefonte and 

• The respective officials and agencies identified in the implementation strategy of the 
Centre County 2025 Hazard Mitigation Plan Update are hereby directed to implement the 
recommended activities assigned to them. 
 

ADOPTED, this ___7____ day of ______July____, 2025 

    BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE 

ATTEST:                                               

__________________________                      __________________________ 

Donald Holderman,     Barbara Dann, 
Interim Borough Manager    Council President 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 106 of 108



Auction List Summer 2025 
Police  

2013 Ford Explorer Interceptor  

VIN:1FM5K8AR0DGC11154  

Mileage: 111239  

 Parks  

1998 Chevrolet 2500  

VIN: 1GCGK24R5WZ267524  

Mileage: 84809  

 Streets  

2010 Ford F350  

VIN: 1FTSF3BR5AEA92991  

Mileage: 50932  
  
Western MVP V-Plow 8’6”  
  
2025 Ford F350 New Take off Bed w/ bumper and tailgate  
  
Water  
2004 Sterling   
VIN: 2FZAAWEC74AN02722  
Mileage: 190606  
GVW: 38000  
  
Sewer Plant  
1995 Chevrolet K3500  

VIN: 1GBJK34K4SE138288  

Mileage: 63408  
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 107 of 108



 
 
 
 
 
 
July 2, 2025 

Borough Council 

Borough of Bellefonte 

301 North Spring Street 

Bellefonte, PA 16823 

 

Re: Financial Contribution for Air Service Development at State College Regional Airport (SCE) 

Dear Borough Council Members: 

As you may know, Bellefonte Borough, State College Borough and Centre County Government are 

original members of the Centre County Airport Authority which was created in the 1950s for the 

promotion of commercial air service in our region.   The Centre County Airport Authority and Penn State 

University (the other owner of the airport) are developing a package of incentives to offer to an airline 

called Breeze.  Breeze Airlines is considered a low-cost carrier and is a newer, fast-growing company that 

would fit very well with our regional population base.   The airport is limited by Federal Aviation 

Administration rules as to the incentives it can provide and must partner with the community for 

financial assistance.  Every dollar helps put us ahead of other communities doing the same thing.   

SCE had a low-cost carrier (Allegiant) prior to Covid and then lost them during that time frame. Airlines in 

general and low-cost carriers in particular, add a positive economic impact to the region by adding direct 

jobs (people who will work directly for the airlines at the airport) and indirectly (new hotel stays, 

restaurant business, marketing, competition drives down prices of the other carriers, etc.) when they 

come into a region.   

On behalf of the Centre County Airport Authority and as Bellefonte Borough’s appointed representative, 

I am asking Bellefonte Borough to consider making a $5000 contribution to this air service development 

effort.  Your contribution will give citizens of Bellefonte more affordable options for air travel and 

positively impact the economy of Centre County.   

Thank you in advance for your support!   

Sincerely, 

Douglas Johnson 

Council Member/Centre County Airport Authority Board Member  

 

 

   

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet July 7, 2025

Page 108 of 108


	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 07072025
	WORK SESSION--Stage at Talleyrand
	COUNCIL MEETING--AGENDA 07072025
	COMMUNICATIONS--Opportunity for Public Comment Period Notice Long Range Transportation Plan 2055
	LRTP 2055 Public Meeting & Comment Period Flyer
	LRTP 2055 Offical Public Comment Period Notice Document

	COMMUNICATIONS--EMS Invitation letter July 2025 - Bellefonte
	COMMUNICATIONS--Letter on herbicide use
	From: GENEVIEV SHULICK <gshulick@comcast.net>  Sent: Monday, June 16, 2025 1:49 PM To: Steven Barr <sbarr@bellefontepa.gov> Cc: Matt Auman <mauman@bellefontepa.gov>; Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov>; Joanne Tosti-Vasey <jtosti-vasey@bellefontep...
	From: GENEVIEV SHULICK <gshulick@comcast.net>  Sent: Wednesday, June 18, 2025 1:28 PM To: Julie Brooks <jbrooks@bellefontepa.gov> Cc: Joanne Tosti-Vasey <jtosti-vasey@bellefontepa.gov>; Matt Auman <mauman@bellefontepa.gov>; Barbara Dann <Bdann@bellefo...

	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual May 2025
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual Summary May 2025
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.06162025.DRAFT
	CONSENT--Treasurers Report May 2025
	CONSENT--Voucher Summary May 2025
	OLD BUSINESS--Memo.Potter Street Railroad Spur
	OLD BUSINESS--Locust Lane Agreement
	OLD BUSINESS--Memorandum of Agreement Transportation Services
	OLD BUSINESS--Oridnance Chapter 405 Regulations of Parks
	article I Regulations
	§ 405-1 Authority of Recreation Committee.
	§ 405-2 General regulations.
	§ 405-3 Appointment of Superintendent of Parks.
	§ 405-4 Designation of official Borough parks.
	§ 405-5 Park reservations.
	§ 405-6 Posting of no-smoking signs.
	§ 405-7 Violations and penalties.


	OLD BUSINESS--Borough Fee Schedule revised July 2025
	Sheet1

	NEW BUSINESS--Resolution No. 07072025-01 Bellefonte Borough Centre County 2025 HMP_Municipal Adoption Resolution
	NEW BUSINESS--Auction List Summer 2025
	NEW BUSINESS--Borough letter Air Service Incentive



